
BZA Packet 
 

November 10, 2015 

 

Hello All, 

 

Enclosed please find your packet for the meeting of November 16, 2015.  

 

We have: 

 

 one “re-do” of a case that expired without the benefit of an extension 

 

 5 new cases  

 

 1 appeal of the zoning official’s interpretation of Section 129-572 of 

the zoning code  

 

If you receive any citizen inquiries regarding these cases the proposed plans 

may be viewed by going to: 

www.mtnbrook.org 

 Government 

 Other Meeting Agendas 

 Board of Zoning Adjustment (BZA) 

 2015-Nov-16 BZA Agenda 

 

If you have any questions about the cases please don’t hesitate to give me a 

call at 802-3821 or send me an email at hazend@mtnbrook.org … 

 

Looking forward to seeing you on Monday! 

 

Dana  

http://www.mtnbrook.org/


MEETING AGENDA 

CITY OF MOUNTAIN BROOK 

BOARD OF ZONING ADJUSTMENT  

NOVEMBER 16, 2015 

PRE-MEETING: (ROOM A106) 4:15 P.M. 

REGULAR MEETING: (ROOM A108) 5:00 P.M.  

CITY HALL, 56 CHURCH STREET, MOUNTAIN BROOK, AL 35213 

 

 
NOTICE 

 

Any variance which is granted today expires and becomes null and void six months from today 

unless construction is begun in less than six months from today on the project for which the 

variance is granted. If construction will not be started within six months from today, the 

applicant may come back in five months and ask for a six-month extension, which the Board 

normally grants. 

 

Any variance which is granted, regardless of the generality of the language of the motion 

granting the variance, must be construed in connection with, and limited by, the request of the 

applicant, including all diagrams, plats, pictures and surveys submitted to this Board before and 

during the public hearing on the variance application. 

 

 

1 Approval of Minutes: October 19, 2015 

 

 

2. Case A-15-13:   Norman Investment Group, LLC, owner; requests variances from the 

terms of the Zoning Regulations to allow a new single family dwelling to be 29 feet from 

the secondary front (Peachtree Road) in lieu of the required 35 feet. – 600 Euclid 

Avenue 

 

3. Case A-15-14:   Reynolds & Hamilton Thompson, owners; request variances from the 

terms of the Zoning Regulations to allow a new pool house to the rear of a new single 

family dwelling, to be 10.6 feet from the side property line (west) in lieu of the required 

15 feet, and 28.6 feet from the rear property line (south) in lieu of the required 40 feet.   

– 3 Ridge Drive 

 

4. Case A-15-15:   Merrill Stewart, owner; requests variances from the terms of the 

Zoning Regulations to allow a single family dwelling to be 36 feet from the side property 

line (northeast) and 34 feet from the side property line (southwest), both in lieu of the 

required 40 feet.  – 2732 Abingdon Road 

 

5. Case A-15-16:   Mr. & Mrs. Jason Grubbs, owners; request a variance from the terms                                                                           

of the Zoning Regulations to allow an addition to a single family dwelling to be 27.2 feet 

from the rear property line (south) in lieu of the required 35 feet.  – 38 Norman Drive 

 

6. Case A-15-17:   Mike & Laura Baker, owners; request a variance from the terms of the 

Zoning Regulations to allow an addition to a single family dwelling to match the existing 

side setback of 5.7 feet from the side property line (southeast) in lieu of the required 9 

feet.  – 403 Cherry Street 



 

7. Case A-15-18:   Crestline Commercial Partners, LLC, requests an appeal from the 

decision of the zoning officer as to the permitted uses in the Vine Street Transitional 

District with respect to urgent care and professional office uses. – 30 Dexter Avenue 

 

 

8. Case A-15-19:   Ford & Kate Hamilton, owners; request a variance from the terms of 

the Zoning Regulations to allow a new deck and screened porch to replace an existing 

deck within 10 feet of the rear property line (southeast) in lieu of the required 35 feet.  

- 169 Peachtree Circle 

Withdrawn 

 

9. Next Meeting: December 15, 2015 

 

10. Adjournment 



Minute Book 15 
 

V:/Minutes &Agendas/BZA/BZA Minutes/2015/20151019 Minutes                                                                               October 21, 2015 

 
 

MEETING MINUTES 

CITY OF MOUNTAIN BROOK 

BOARD OF ZONING ADJUSTMENT  

October 19, 2015 
 

The regular meeting of the City of Mountain Brook Board of Zoning Adjustment was 

held on Monday, October 19, 2015, at 5:00 p.m. in the Council Chamber at Mountain 

Brook City Hall. 

 

Present were Chairman Patrick Higginbotham, Co-Chairman William Hereford, Richard 

Simonton, Chris Mitchell and Rhett Loveman. Also present were City Council Liaison 

Virginia Smith, Director of Planning, Building & Sustainability Dana Hazen, Building 

Official Glen Merchant and Administrative Assistant Tammy Graham.  Henry Lapidus 

and Norman Orr were absent.   

 

No changes were made to the presented agenda. 

 

Chairman Higginbotham asked if all adjacent property owners in each of the cases on the 

agenda had received legal notice of this hearing.  Mrs. Graham replied that, based on the 

information supplied by the appellants, they had been notified. 

 

Mr. Higginbotham stated that any variance which is granted today expires and becomes 

null and void six months from today, unless construction is begun in less than six months 

from today on the project for which the variance is granted.  If construction will not be 

started within six months from today, the applicant may come back in five months and 

ask for a six-month extension. 

 

 

1. Approval of Minutes  -  September 21, 2015: 

 

 Motion:   Mr. Hereford to approve 

 Second:   Mr. Loveman 

 Vote:       Unanimously approved   

 

2. Case 4173:  62 Norman Drive   

                                                                               

Matt and Katie Morrow, owners, request variances from the terms of the Zoning 

Regulations to allow first floor additions to match the front building line (32.8 feet 

from the front property line) and to match the rear building line (15.5 feet from the 

rear property line, east), both in lieu of the required 35 feet.  Also, to remove and 

rebuild an existing covered front porch stoop which is 28.3 from the front property 

line in lieu of the required 35 feet. (April 20, 2015) 

 

Katie Morrow, owner:  The original variance was granted in April at the beginning of 

the building process.  Final pricing should be completed in 30 to 60 days. 

 

 

 



Minute Book 15 
 

V:/Minutes &Agendas/BZA/BZA Minutes/2015/20151019 Minutes                                                                               October 21, 2015 

 
 

Motion:    Mr. Hereford, to grant extension  

Second:    Mr. Simonton 

Vote: Ayes    Nays     

Higginbotham  None 

 Hereford 

 Simonton 

 Mitchell 

 Loveman 

 

Extension approved by a 5 – 0 vote.                                                            EXHIBIT 1 

 

 

3. Case A-15-08:  98 Country Club Boulevard 
 

Troy Rhone, owner, requests variances from the terms of the Zoning Regulations to allow 

additions to an existing single family dwelling to be 4.5 feet from the side property line 

(west) in lieu of the required 15 feet, and 6 feet from the secondary front property line 

(Montevallo Road) in lieu of the required 40 feet.  Also, to allow an increase in lot 

coverage from the existing 36% (1,814 sf) to 37.4% (1,847 sf).  These additions include a 

staircase (west façade) and a chimney (south façade).   

 

Chairman Higginbotham:  Summarized the case since it was a carry-over from last 

meeting. 

 

 Setback hardships:   

 

 The triangular shape of the lot. 

 

 The size of the lot (4,937 sf in lieu of the 30,000 sf minimum for Res-A). 

 

 Lot has a primary and a secondary front, each with required 40-foot setbacks. 

 

 The Country Club of Birmingham has dedicated a perpetual use easement on the 

west side of the property for the exclusive use of this property. This easement is 

for improvements such as parking and landscaping, but may not be used for 

buildings. 

 

  Charles Perkins represented the owner, Troy Rhone: 

 

 Mr. Perkins stated that Mr. Rhone submitted drawings to the Country Club of 

Birmingham and that an email was sent to Mrs.  Hazen affirming that the Club 

has no objection to the variance.  Mrs. Hazen indicated that she received the 

email.  (Email from Trip Umbach of Starnes, Davis, Florie, LLP dated October 

19, 2015 to Mrs. Hazen – Informing in writing that the Country Club of 

Birmingham has no objection to the variance sought by Mr. Rhone.) 

 

 No public comments. 

 



Minute Book 15 
 

V:/Minutes &Agendas/BZA/BZA Minutes/2015/20151019 Minutes                                                                               October 21, 2015 

 
 

Motion:   Mr. Mitchell, to approve 

 Second:    Mr. Hereford amended the motion by adding the requirement that the 

Building Official approve the Storm Water Divergence Plan prior to 

issuance of a building permit. 

 

Amended motion:  Mr. Mitchell, to approve 

Second:   Mr. Hereford 

Vote: Ayes    Nays     

Higginbotham  None 

 Hereford 

 Simonton 

 Mitchell 

 Loveman 

 

Variance approved, with stated caveat, by a 5 – 0 vote.                              EXHIBIT 2     

           

 

4. Case A-15-09:   8 Alden Lane 
 

Mr. and Mrs. Jack Bethay, owners, request a variance from the terms of the Zoning 

Regulations to allow additions to an existing single family dwelling to be within 17 feet of 

the rear property line (west) in lieu of the required 35 feet.  

 

 Chairman Higginbotham stated that Mr. Mitchell has recused himself from voting on 

 this case. 

  

 Bruce McLeod, McLeod Architecture, represented Mr. and Mrs. Bethay. 

 

  Setback Hardship:  Corner lot configuration; irregularly shaped lot. 

 

 No public comments. 

   

Motion:    Mr. Hereford, to grant variance  

Second:    Mr. Loveman 

Vote: Ayes    Nays     

Higginbotham  None 

 Hereford 

 Simonton 

 Loveman 

 

 Variance approved by a 4 – 0 vote.                        EXHIBIT 3                                                         

 

 

5. Case A-15-10:  2939 Balmoral Road 
 

Bill and Lisa Maclean, owners, request a variance from the terms of the Zoning 

Regulations to allow a detached garage to be 12 feet from the rear property line 

(southeast) in lieu of the required 35 feet.   



Minute Book 15 
 

V:/Minutes &Agendas/BZA/BZA Minutes/2015/20151019 Minutes                                                                               October 21, 2015 

 
 

 

James Wagnon, Historical Home Designs, Inc., represented Mr. and Mrs. Maclean:   

 

Setback Hardship: Topography – This small lot slopes significantly from front to  

   rear; placement of house presents a hardship as well. 

 

 Applicant wants to create parking off of the street to eliminate long-term parking 

in front of the house and to provide parking for larger vehicles 

 

 Garage size:  26’ wide by 28’ deep and 1 ½ story tall.  The extra depth is needed  

to add a staircase to the unfinished storage area in the loft.   Standard garage size 

is 24’ by 24’. 

 

 No place to build the garage without getting into rear setbacks.  Changing location 

would require building up the entire back yard. 

 

 The size of the garage will not have a visual impact from the street.  Because of 

the drastic slope in the rear, while on the property line looking toward rear houses, 

the line of vision is roof tops. 

 

 The rear turn-around gives access to the basement two-car garage; not an option 

to build there. 

 

 Board:   

 

 The lot size, technically, is not small for Res-B Zoning; therefore, does not 

qualify as a hardship because of size.  Minimum lot size 10,000 sf; this lot is 

14,000 sf. 

 

 Addition of such a large structure may over-build the lot; proposed garage is too 

large. 

 

 A 20’ by 20’, 15’ tall structure (under 400 sf) could be placed within 10 feet of 

the property line, and would not require a variance. 

 

 Concerned about impact on property owners to the rear. 

 

 Retaining wall in rear – if a second retaining wall is needed and is not part of the 

structure, another variance will be required. 

 

 Appears there are other placement options. 

 

 No significant hardship presented. 

 

No public comments. 

 

 



Minute Book 15 
 

V:/Minutes &Agendas/BZA/BZA Minutes/2015/20151019 Minutes                                                                               October 21, 2015 

 
 

Motion:    Mr. Loveman, to approve  

Second:    Mr. Higginbotham 

Vote: Ayes  Nays     

 None Higginbotham       

 Hereford    

 Simonton 

 Mitchell 

 Loveman 

 

Variance denied by a 5 – 0 vote.                                                                        EXHIBIT 4                                                     
 

                                                                           

6. Case A-15-11:  50 Fairway Drive  

 

Scott and Lynne Russell, owners, request a variance from the terms of the Zoning 

Regulations to allow alterations to an existing detached garage which is 5.3 feet from the side 

property line (northeast) in lieu of the required 15 feet, and 20 feet from the rear property line 

in lieu of the required 40 feet.  
 

J. K. Terry, Landscape Architect and Residential Designer, representative for the 

property owners: 

 

 This is a remodel of an existing structure to compliment the house that will be 

built. 

 

 No footage added. 

 

 One-story structure, 20’ by 24’. 

 

 Final construction plans for the house are expected by November; building 

permits in February.  

 

 Construction of house and remodel of garage will coincide.   

 

Question from Board:  Will the remodel look as presented?  Mr. Terry:  “Yes” 

  

Motion:    Mr. Hereford, to approve variance 

Second:    Mr. Simonton 

Vote: Ayes   Nays     

 Higginbotham None 

 Hereford 

Simonton 

 Mitchell 

Loveman 

 

Variance approved by a 5 – 0 vote.                                                                   EXHIBIT 5  

 

                                                                                                                 



Minute Book 15 
 

V:/Minutes &Agendas/BZA/BZA Minutes/2015/20151019 Minutes                                                                               October 21, 2015 

 
 

7. Case A-15-12:  2821 Shook Hill Circle  
 

Herbert Beville, Jr., owner, requests a variance from the terms of the Zoning 

Regulations to construct a pool house in the front yard (100 feet from Shook Hill Circle) 

in lieu of the requirement for such structures to be in the rear yard.  

 

Setback hardship:   A setback variance was granted in August, 2014, case number 4135.  

Present variance request is to alter previous plans for location of the 

cabana (pool house) from one side of the house to the other; aesthetic 

reasons. 

  

The previous variance was approved with the condition that greenery is planted for 

privacy.  Mr. Beville stated that landscaping has begun; installing 6’ to 8’ tall greenery on 

every tier.  

 

Motion:    Mr. Hereford, to approve variance 

Second:    Mr. Mitchell 

Vote: Ayes   Nays     

Higginbotham None 

Hereford 

Simonton 

Mitchell 

Loveman 

 

Variance approved by a 5 – 0 vote.                                                                   EXHIBIT 6                                                                                                                    

 

 

There being no further business to come before the Board at this time, the meeting 

adjourned at 5:40 p.m. 

 

 

       ______________________________________ 

                                                                       Tammy Graham, Administrative Assistant 

 



A-15-13
600 Euclid Avenue



A-15-13
600 Euclid Avenue



PEACHTREE CT

SPRING
ST

EU
CLI

D A
VE

PEACHTREE ST

DE
XT
ER
AV
E

PEACH
TREE RD

125

120
620

121 616

608

612116

117

101
611

609

600
100

607

512
605

603

508 608
601

606504

604

503

144

112

104

119

414

413
411

409

128
118

140

116

502 511

602
500 509

600
507

505

510503
601508

501
506

27

504
421

509
500

505

604

Zoning Legend

Clustered Residential

Community Shopping

Estate Residence District

Local Business District

MXD

Office Park District

Professional District

PUD

Residence A District

Residence B District

Residence C District

Residence D District

Residence E District

Residence F District

Residence G District

Recreation District

RID

Rec-2

A-15-13 (Zoning)



Report to the Board of Zoning Adjustment 

 

A-15-13 
 

 

 

Petition Summary 
Request to allow a new single family dwelling to be 29 feet from the secondary front 

(Peachtree Road) in lieu of the required 35 feet. 

 

Background 
On January 12, 2015, the Board approved this same request (Case 4161) to allow a new 

single family dwelling to be 29 feet from the secondary front (Peachtree Road) in lieu of 

the required 35 feet.  The case expired in June 2015 as an extension was not filed. 

 

On December 8, 2014, the applicant withdrew Variance Case 4158 (which was a request 

to allow a new single family dwelling to be 25 feet from the secondary front property line 

(Peachtree Road) in lieu of the required 35 feet) in an attempt to redesign a project that 

would be more satisfactory to neighbors who had expressed opposition to the impending 

variance at the December 1, 2014 Planning Commission hearing of the resurvey case. 

 

On December 1, 2014, the Planning Commission approved Case 1937, which was a 

request to subdivide an existing large lot at 600 Euclid Avenue into two 70-foot wide 

conforming Res-C lots.  The new Lot 1-A, at the intersection of Euclid and Peachtree, is 

the subject of this application for a new single family dwelling.    

 

Analysis 
The hardship in this case is the two “front” setbacks on a corner lot.  The proposal 

involves a new single family dwelling to be 29 feet from the secondary front (Peachtree) 

in lieu of the required 35 feet.  It should be noted that if there was an existing alley at the 

rear of this property then the zoning code would automatically allow the construction of a 

new single family dwelling to be 17.5 feet from the secondary front property line.   

 

The importance of the alley in the writing of this code requirement is that when an alley 

exists to the rear of a lot such as the subject lot on Euclid, often an alley separates the rear 

property line from other properties along the secondary front (in this case, Peachtree) that 

have that same secondary street as a primary frontage (or 35 feet).  Clear as mud?   The 

point is that with a natural alley break between the rear property line of such a lot and 

those lots whose primary frontage is along the same street, it can serve as a protection for 

the streetscape. 

 

In this case Peachtree is not a “straight street” and actually bends up away from the 

subject lot to the northeast.  Therefore, allowing an encroachment into the secondary 

front in this case would not necessarily be detrimental to the streetscape along the same 

side of Peachtree. 

 



It should be noted that all three of the other lots at the intersection of Euclid and 

Peachtree are 57 feet side, with houses that are less than 35 feet from the secondary front 

of Peachtree Street.  The two houses that front the south side of Euclid do have the alley 

configuration on the secondary front and so would automatically qualify for the reduced 

setback of 17.5 feet.  The house at 512 Euclid does not have the rear alley configuration, 

and without a survey an exact dimension for that house is not known, but it is safe to say 

that is not 35 feet from Peachtree if the lot is 57 feet wide.  

 

Impervious Area 
Since the complete lot design has not been developed (as to driveways, walkways, etc.) 

the proposed impervious area is not know at this time, but will have to conform to the 

40% maximum in order to obtain any building permit.  

 

Subject Property and Surrounding Land Uses 
The property contains a single-family dwelling, and is surrounded by same. 

 

Affected Regulation 
Article V, Residence C District; Section 129-62, Area and Dimensional Requirements 

 

Appends 
LOCATION:  600 Euclid Avenue 

 

ZONING DISTRICT:  Residence C 

 

OWNER:  Norman Investment Group, LLC 

 

AGENT:  Davis Building Group 

 

 

 





PEACHTREE ST

EU
CL
ID
AV
E

PEACHTREE RD

101

600

512

508

601

604

A-15-13 (Aerial)



A-15-13
600 Euclid Avenue



MOUNTAIN BROOK BOARD OF ZONING ADJUSTMENT 
56 CHURCH STREET 

MOUNTAIN BROOK, ALABAMA 
 

NOTICE TO OWNERS OF ADJACENT PROPERTY 
 

 
A request for a variance in the Zoning Ordinance, as applied to the property located at 
600 Euclid Avenue, has been filed by Norman Investment Group, LLC. 
 
The requested variance would authorize the construction of a new single family dwelling 
as per plot plan on file at Mountain Brook City Hall. 
 
The property is located in the Residence-C Zoning District, and requires approval by the 
Board of Zoning Adjustment for the following variance from the terms of the Zoning 
Regulations: 
 
Case A-15-13:   Norman Investment Group, LLC, owner, requests variances from the 
terms of the Zoning Regulations to allow a new single family dwelling to be 29 feet from 
the secondary front (Peachtree Road) in lieu of the required 35 feet. – 600 Euclid 
Avenue 
 
*This is the same request that was approved on January 12, 2015 (Case 4161).  The case 
expired in June 2015.  An extension was not filed. 
 
A public hearing will be held by the Board of Zoning Adjustment on  MONDAY, 
November 16, 2015 at 5:00 p.m. in Mountain Brook City Hall, at which time you may 
appear, if you so desire, either in person or by agent or by attorney. 

 
The application and related material are available for inspection during regular 
business hours at City Hall, 56 Church Street or by viewing: 

 
www.mtnbrook.org 
- Government 
- Other Meeting Agendas 
-  Board of Zoning Adjustment  
-  November 16, 2015 (to view survey select link associated with the case number on the agenda) 
 
Sincerely, 

 
Dana O. Hazen, MPA, AICP 
Director of Planning, Building & Sustainability 
(205) 802-3821     
hazend@mtnbrook.org 

http://www.mtnbrook.org/


Variance Application - Part I 1 
Proiect Data 

Address of Subject Property 

Zoning Classification 

Name of Property 

Phone Number 

Name of Surveyor wy@*p I 

Phone Number q Q • Bb Email 

Name of Architect (if applicable) t* I Cb 
14 W&f"l p-tbc&tTE 

Phone Number % o 6 . 3 2 / f - % q ?  ~ ~ ~ i l b ~ u . e t a c l l k r r i b  t7flW'TE.G7,~@/7 

Property owner or representative agent must be present at hearing I 

Please fill in only applicable project information (relating directly to thi variance request(s): 

Lot Area (sf) 
Lot Width (ft) 
Front Setback (ft) primary 
Front Setback (ft) secondary 
Right Side Setback 
Left Side Setback 
Right Side Setback (ft): 
For non-conforming narrow 
lots in Res-B or Res-C: 
Less than 22' high + 
22' high or greater + 
Left Side Setback (ft): 
For non-conforming narrow 
lots in Res-B or Res-C: 
Less than 22' high + 
22' high or greater + 
Rear Setback (fi) 
Lot Coverage (YO) 
Building Height (ft) 
Other 
Other 

Zoning Code Existing 
Requirement Development 

Proposed 





RO
CK
DE
LL

LN

C
O
U
N
TR

Y 
C
LU

B
 R
D

SALISBU
RY RD RIDGE DR

ROCKLE
DGE RD

3238

3234

4

3257
3253

3215

32473245

3239

2
3

3242

3522

3620

3624

3628

3509

3505

3240

14

3621

8 10
6

4

15
7 11

5
3

8
1086

2

3235

3229

3246

Zoning Legend

Clustered Residential

Community Shopping

Estate Residence District

Local Business District

MXD

Office Park District

Professional District

PUD

Residence A District

Residence B District

Residence C District

Residence D District

Residence E District

Residence F District

Residence G District

Recreation District

RID

Rec-2

A-15-14 (Zoning)



Report to the Board of Zoning Adjustment 

 

A-15-14 
 

Petition Summary 
Request to allow a new pool house to the rear of a new single family dwelling, to be 10.6 

feet from the side property line (west) in lieu of the required 15 feet, and 28.6 feet from 

the rear property line (south) in lieu of the required 40 feet.   

 

Analysis 
The hardships in this case are topography and a large rock outcropping in the front yard.  

As may be seen on the attached site plan, the new single family dwelling proposed for 

this lot is well behind the required 40-foot front setback line, due to the rock outcropping 

on the northwest corner of the site.  Therefore, the entire development scheme for this 

property is pushed toward the rear of the lot.  For this reason, a portion of the proposed 

pool house is to be located within the required 40-foot rear setback.  Also, the topography 

at the rear of the site drops from northwest to southeast, making it more practical to 

locate the pool house closer to the west side property line (10.6 feet where 15 feet is 

required); it is also higher than 15 feet. 

 

The proposed pool house is approximately 687 square feet, which disqualifies it from 

utilizing the reduced side and rear setbacks of 10 feet for detached structures less than 

400 square feet in area.  

 

Impervious Area 
The proposal is in compliance with the allowable impervious surface area.   

 

Subject Property and Surrounding Land Uses 
The property contains a single-family dwelling, and is surrounded by same. 

 

Affected Regulation 
Article III, Residence A District; Section 129-34, Area and Dimensional Requirements 

 

Article XIX, General Area and Dimensional Requirements; Section 129-314, Accessory 

Structures on Residential Lots 

 

Appends 
LOCATION:  3 Ridge Drive 

 

ZONING DISTRICT:  Res-A 

 

OWNERS: Reynolds and Hamilton Thompson 

 

 

 

 

 







hazend
Oval

hazend
Typewritten Text

hazend
Typewritten Text

hazend
Typewritten Text



hazend
Typewritten Text
Proposed Pool House

hazend
Typewritten Text

hazend
Typewritten Text

hazend
Typewritten Text

hazend
Typewritten Text

hazend
Typewritten Text

hazend
Typewritten Text



hazend
Typewritten Text
Proposed New Single Family Dwelling

hazend
Typewritten Text



hazend
Typewritten Text

hazend
Typewritten Text

hazend
Typewritten Text

hazend
Typewritten Text

hazend
Typewritten Text

hazend
Typewritten Text
Proposed New Single Family Dwelling

hazend
Typewritten Text



RIDGE DR

A-15-14 (Aerial2)



I 1 

Variance Application 
Part I1 

Required Findings (Sec. 19.26.5 of the Zoning Ordinance) 

To aid staff in determining that the required hardship findings can be made in this particular 
case, please answer the following questions with regard to your request. / ~ h e s e  findings must 
be made by the Board of Zoning Adjustment in order for a varianceko be granted (please 
attach a separate sheet if necessary). 

What special circumstances or conditions, applying to the building or land in question, are 
peculiar to such building or Iand, and do not apply generally to other buildings or land in the 
vicinity (including size, sh e, topography, location or surroundings)? 
WEEP q-apo@wpl~ w r+.l@(~ ~ S O K  @ufc,~op+l*w (rr 
FpW" W7'1b FIQ L.V LI@E 1 :  wP /-7. 56 4iRt7& , 

Why is the granting of a variance necessary to preserve property rights o I the subject property 
and not be the granting or a special privilege for the applicant's convenience? 
To flEebTE m wu- \pW TWtJ. WIPE 
(4Q\WB.~R- P#w = P J  VIEW ~ p o r  O W % P ~ %  + v @  
W b C  HOT I ~ ~ T S ~ F E - W ~ D  %%pTIC.- brt"E5. 

' 

:a 

$-- , 

Was the condition from which relief is sought a result of action by the applicant? (i.e., self- 
imposed hardship such as: ". . .converted existing garage to living space d am now seeking a 
variance to construct a new garage in a required setback.. .") 

~orS57@c'Piar-C. 
+' 

1 
I I 

2 s 

How would the granting of this variance be consistent with the purpose and intent of the Zoning 
Regulations? 
orb f l ~ d e Z E  [SFf V \ W V ~ -  f=-PbT1 r j ~ w S T  svr LwF; pewr CIsp . 11 w w  I+ L n e T  

t*& T-&& WV 7 ~ 4  fq3WeF F*P" 
&GP- - 

** w ~ N I  571H- .: 
F ~ r ' l  FE/11ZI . j 

4 



MOUNTAIN BROOK BOARD OF ZONING ADJUSTMENT 
56 CHURCH STREET 

MOUNTAIN BROOK, ALABAMA 
 

NOTICE TO OWNERS OF ADJACENT PROPERTY 
 

 
A request for variances in the Zoning Ordinance, as applied to the property located at 3 
Ridge Drive, has been filed by Reynolds & Hamilton Thompson. 
 
The requested variances would authorize the construction of a pool house as part a new 
home as per plot plan on file at Mountain Brook City Hall. 
 
The property is located in the Res-A Zoning District, and requires approval by the Board 
of Zoning Adjustment for the following variances from the terms of the Zoning 
Regulations: 
 

Case A-15-14:  Reynolds & Hamilton Thompson, owners, request variances from the 
terms of the Zoning Regulations to allow a new pool house to the rear of a new single 
family dwelling, to be 10.6 feet from the side property line (west) in lieu of the required 15 
feet, and 28.6 feet from the rear property line (south) in lieu of the required 40 feet. 
- 3 Ridge Drive 

 
A public hearing will be held by the Board of Zoning Adjustment on  MONDAY, 
November 16, 2015 at 5:00 p.m. in Mountain Brook City Hall, at which time you may 
appear, if you so desire, either in person or by agent or by attorney. 

 
The application and related material are available for inspection during regular 
business hours at City Hall, 56 Church Street or by viewing: 

 
www.mtnbrook.org 
- Government 
- Other Meeting Agendas 
-  Board of Zoning Adjustment  
-  November 16, 2015 (to view survey select link associated with the case number on the agenda) 
 
Sincerely, 

 
Dana O. Hazen, MPA, AICP 
Director of Planning, Building & Sustainability 
(205) 802-3821     
hazend@mtnbrook.org 

http://www.mtnbrook.org/


Variance Application - Part 

Address of Subject Property 

Zoning Classification 

Phone Number 

Phone Number 

Phone Number 

I 



Variance Request Written Description for 

2732 Abingdon Road 
Mountai-n &oak, Alabama 35243 
A request for Setback Variance for both the left and right 40' Building Setbacks for a new 
construction Residence on a currently empty Residential Estate Lot located at 2732 Abingdon 
Road, Mt Brook 35243 is being submitted for possible approval. 

Ttie Properiy Owner is trying to preserve the Qrarmer and aesmmc of me surrounding 
neighbors, as well as, utilize the topography to minimize impact on adjacent properties and 
ensure proper siting to capitalize on a Low Impact Design and solar orientation of the proposed 
home. 

The House is sited in line w~th neighboring homes and capitalizes on the ridge's crest to provide 
the proposed home with a traditional front and back yard, a graceful entry drive off of Abingdon 
Rd to a side motor court and guest parking. Due to proposed siting, minor encroachment on 
either side 40' building setbacks; 6.00' on the left (West) side and 4.00' on the left (East) side, 
resulting in our request for variance. 

Due to steep topography on much of the rear of the property and a narrowing lot width, that 
narrows below the required 200' minimum width, from the street line to the 100' setback line 
(Sect. 129-72.a.2) these coupled issues have resulted in a hardship in this particular case. 

We are seeking request for a minor setback Variance on either side setbacks and hope the BZA 
and the City of Mountain Brook can assist us in gaining approval or helping gain better insight 
into this request. 

Prinapal, Lorberbaum Odrezin Assoc~ates, LLC 
(LBO Associates, Adng as the Owner's Representative to the C~ty of Mt. Book BZA for this 
Var~ance Request.) 



HIGHWAY 280 W

C
A
LD
W
EL
L
M
IL
L
R
D

ABINGDON
RD

OLD HIGHW
AY 280

CA
ME

LIA
LN

AB
IN
G
D
O
N
LN

RO
CK
Y
RI
DG
E
RD

PUM
P
HOUSE

RD

AB
ING

DO
N TR

L

2744
2701

2740

2748

2760

2736

2732

2728

2741

2749

2767
2720

2708

4112

4224

4233

4228

4232

2721
4116 2791

4125

2701

4209

4111

42172653
4212

4225

4216

4230

4229

2721

Zoning Legend

Clustered Residential

Community Shopping

Estate Residence District

Local Business District

MXD

Office Park District

Professional District

PUD

Residence A District

Residence B District

Residence C District

Residence D District

Residence E District

Residence F District

Residence G District

Recreation District

RID

Rec-2

A-15-15 (Zoning)



Report to the Board of Zoning Adjustment 

 

A-15-15 
 

Petition Summary 
Request to allow a single family dwelling to be 36 feet from the side property line 

(northeast) and 34 feet from the side property line (southwest), both in lieu of the 

required 40 feet. 

 

Analysis 
The hardships in this case are topography and the narrowness of the lot.  As may be seen 

on the attached site plan, the proposed house is to be located on the crest of the ridge, 

resulting is a floor plan that spans the width of the lot rather than the length.  The lot is 

193 feet wide, where 200 feet is required by the Estate zoning district; therefore deficient 

by 7 feet.  The proposed encroachments, taken together, are 10 feet. Given the small scale 

of the proposed encroachments, no detrimental effect to adjoining properties is 

anticipated in conjunction with an approval of this request. 

 

Impervious Area 
The proposal is in compliance with the allowable impervious surface area.   

 

Subject Property and Surrounding Land Uses 
The property contains a single-family dwelling, and is surrounded by same. 

 

Affected Regulation 
Article VI, Estate Residence District; Section 129-72, Area and Dimensional 

Requirements 

 

Appends 
LOCATION:  2732 Abingdon Drive 

 

ZONING DISTRICT:  Estate 

 

OWNER: Merrill Stewart 

 

 

 

 

 







RO
CK
Y
RI
DG
E
RD

AB
ING

DON RD

2740

2736

2732

2728

2741

2720

2708 2721

A-15-15 (Aerial)



Variance Application 
Part I1 

Required Findings (See. 19265 of the Zoninp Ordinance) 

To aid staff in determining that the required hardship findings can be m de in this particular 
case, please answer the following questions with regard to your request These findings must 
be made by the Board of Zoning Adjustment in order for a varianc to be granted (please 
attach a separate sheet if necessary). I 
What special circumstances or conditions, applying to the building or la-ld in question, are 
peculiar to such building or land, and do not apply generally to other buildings or land in the 
vicinity (including size, shape, topography, location or surroundings)? 
lid6 L o r  \ ~ \o - fA  vr~low T i  ~ t h ) t w u k  ZOO ' LOT w 1 VTA - 5tk. 127-73.4.2 
ALGO. 7- wc;ruPth - 5iae4w~'I w p m ,  CI  Y IT+ +u - r i i  pe+-%i7 &ME . 

Why is the granting of a variance necessary to preserve property rig 



MOUNTAIN BROOK BOARD OF ZONING ADJUSTMENT 
56 CHURCH STREET 

MOUNTAIN BROOK, ALABAMA 
 

NOTICE TO OWNERS OF ADJACENT PROPERTY 
 

 
A request for variances in the Zoning Ordinance, as applied to the property located at 
2732 Abingdon Road, has been filed by Merrill Stewart. 
 
The requested variances would authorize the construction of a new single family dwelling 
as per plot plan on file at Mountain Brook City Hall. 
 
The property is located in the Estate Zoning District, and requires approval by the 
Board of Zoning Adjustment for the following variances from the terms of the Zoning 
Regulations: 
 
A-15-15:  Merrill Stewart, owner; requests variances from the terms of the Zoning 

Regulations to allow a single family dwelling to be 36 feet from the side property 
line (northeast) and 34 feet from the side property line (southwest), both in lieu of 
the required 40 feet.  – 2732 Abingdon Road 

 
A public hearing will be held by the Board of Zoning Adjustment on  MONDAY, 
November 16, 2015 at 5:00 p.m. in Mountain Brook City Hall, at which time you may 
appear, if you so desire, either in person or by agent or by attorney. 

 
The application and related material are available for inspection during regular 
business hours at City Hall, 56 Church Street or by viewing: 

 
www.mtnbrook.org 
- Government 
- Other Meeting Agendas 
-  Board of Zoning Adjustment  
-  November 16, 2015 (to view survey select link associated with the case number on the agenda) 
 
Sincerely, 

 
Dana O. Hazen, MPA, AICP 
Director of Planning, Building & Sustainability 
(205) 802-3821     
hazend@mtnbrook.org 

http://www.mtnbrook.org/


-- 
7 

Variance Application - Part I 

Proiect Data 

Address of Subject Pr 

Zoning Classification 

Name of Property 

Phone Number Email 

Name of Surveyor &%q-m bs&~+l* 
Phone Number mfi 5-P Email 

Name of Architect (if applicable) - - 
Phone Number ST \\ Email &Y& ~ 4 %  & 
Property owner or representative agent must be present at hearing 

Please fill in only applicable project information (relating directly to the variance request(s): 

Zoning Code Existing Proposed 
Requirement Development Development 

Lot Area (sf) \%- I 
Lot Width (ft) 
Front Setback (ft) primary 535. P w e e  

Front Setback (ft) secondary 
Right Side Setback \'2 0- %.Irn 'Z =\a% 

Left Side Setback \ = a +  \.Z. 2 I \%a 
Right Side Setback (ft): 
For non-conforming narrow 
lots in Res-B or Res-C: 
Less than 22' high -.) 
22' high or greater -.) 
Left Side Setback (ft): 
For non-conforming narrow 
lots in Res-B or Res-C: 
Less than 22' high + 
22' high or greater + 
Rear Setback (ft) 
Lot Coverage (%) 
Building Height (ft) 
Other 
Other 

P 

v w m -  F-~M- 
3 

m~r-f i  
U w  

27. % G?. a 
-*zl )JW 

- 



HB,rnINGSWORTH 
CAREY HOLLINQSWORTH AROHITECT INC 

october 22, 2015 

Board for Zoning ~ d j u s t w e n t  
City of Mountain B r o ~ k  
56 Church street  
~ o u n t a i n  l3rook, Atabama 352i3 

Dea r Board Members, 

on behalf of MY. a d  MrS.JC1Son c,rubbs I submit a req~cest for \/ariawe for the 
propevty a t  38 Norman  rive. The o w a r  requests relieffvom the rear setback due t o  
the position of t h e  existing gamge structure in relation t o  t h e  angled property Link. 

rt is proposed that t h e  e x i s t i q  detached garage will become part @the main  house 
stmcture by c o n ~ c t i n g  with t h e  main Level a d  with the additiafi of a playroom 
above. The new upper Level rear wcrll will be three feet behind the e4istin.g rear main Level 
watt. Please wte that  the non- c ~ n f ~ r m i q  portion is only a s ~ h q t l  co~lher ofthe 
structure a s  illustrated on t h e  attached site plan. 

Thank you for your cofisideration, 

very ~ r u l y  YOUYS, h m 

Carey F. I-t~llingswovth~ I l l ,  AIA 

simmonsh
Highlight

simmonsh
Highlight

simmonsh
Highlight

simmonsh
Highlight



M
ON
TE
VA
LL
O
RD

PINE CREST RD

VI
RG
IN
IA
 R
D

WINTHROP AVE

NORMAN DR

A
LD

EN
 L
N

CANTERBURY LN

BA
LM

OR
AL
RD

4139 8
3217

34
58

19

5636

54
21

38

3305 3 5
7

9
6

11

15
17

1
158

17

10 14

14

16 18
20 22

8
3 10

125

17 5
20

9
11 17 1922

9
1523

1424
11 13

43 45 47

54
30

2940
62 66

2945

3035

2941
3033 2932 2930

2939
2928

2928

29262935

2924 2924
29312920

26

31
11

55

13 9
28 12

15 10

53

3730

51

5240 42 44 46 48
23

6

8

10

12

14

16

20

22

25
27 29 31

33
35 37 39 41

24

3020

26

3030

30313009
3015

2920

4

Zoning Legend

Clustered Residential

Community Shopping

Estate Residence District

Local Business District

MXD

Office Park District

Professional District

PUD

Residence A District

Residence B District

Residence C District

Residence D District

Residence E District

Residence F District

Residence G District

Recreation District

RID

Rec-2

A-15-16 (Zoning)



Report to the Board of Zoning Adjustment 

 

A-15-16 
 

Petition Summary 
Request to allow an addition to a single family dwelling to be 27.2 feet from the rear 

property line (south) in lieu of the required 35 feet. 

 

Analysis 
The hardships in this case are the irregular shape of the lot and an angled rear property 

line (not parallel to the front property line), resulting in the rear of the house not being 

parallel to the rear property line.   

 

The proposal involves connecting an existing detached accessory building to the main 

structure, and adding a second story to what is currently the detached accessory building.  

The existing detached structure is 27.2 feet from the rear property line, and the new 

second floor is to be 30.2 feet from the same.  It should be noted that only the corner of 

this structure is proposed to encroach into the rear setback, due to the angle of the rear 

property line.   

 

Impervious Area 
The proposal is in compliance with the allowable impervious surface area.   

 

Subject Property and Surrounding Land Uses 
The property contains a single-family dwelling, and is surrounded by same. 

 

Affected Regulation 
Article IV, Residence B District; Section 129-52, Area and Dimensional Requirements 

 

Appends 
LOCATION:  38 Norman Drive 

 

ZONING DISTRICT:  Res-B 

 

OWNERS: Mr. and Mrs. Jason Grubbs 

 

 

 

 





NORMAN DR

39

32

34

36

38

40

27 29 31

33

35

A-15-16 (Aerial)



Variance Application 
Part I1 

Required Findin~s (Sec. 19.26.5 of the Zoning Ordinance) 

To aid staff in determining that the required hardship findings can be made in this particular 
case, please answer the following questions with regard to your request These findings must 
be made by the Board of Zoning Adjustment in order for a variance to be granted (please 
attach a separate sheet if necessary). 

What special circumstances or conditions, applying to the building or land in question, are 
peculiar to such building or land, and do not apply generally to other buildings or land in the 
vicinity (including size, shape, topography, location or surroundings)? 

Why is the granting of a variance necessary to preserve property rights on the subject property 
and not be the granting or a special privilege for the applicant's convenience? 

m ~ T r - f i e  m-eH 

Was the condition from which relief is sought a result of action by the applicant? (i.e., self- 
imposed hardship such as: ". . .converted existing garage to living space and am now seeking a 
variance to construct a new garage in a required setback.. .") 

4 

How would the granting of this variance be consistent with the purpose and intent of the Zoning 
Regulations? . -HIP : U S  To T$I+ WP 1 ~ l - A  . 



MOUNTAIN BROOK BOARD OF ZONING ADJUSTMENT 
56 CHURCH STREET 

MOUNTAIN BROOK, ALABAMA 
 

NOTICE TO OWNERS OF ADJACENT PROPERTY 
 

 
A request for a variance in the Zoning Ordinance, as applied to the property located at 38 
Norman Drive, has been filed by Mr. and Mrs. Jason Grubbs. 
 
The requested variance would authorize the construction of an addition connecting an 
existing single family dwelling and a detached garage, and adding a second story to the 
garage as per plot plan on file at Mountain Brook City Hall. 
 
The property is located in the Res-B Zoning District, and requires approval by the Board 
of Zoning Adjustment for the following variance from the terms of the Zoning 
Regulations: 
 

A-15-16:  Mr. and Mrs. Jason Grubbs, owners, request a variance from the terms of the 
Zoning Regulations to allow an addition to a single family dwelling to be 27.2 
feet from the rear property line (south) in lieu of the required 35 feet.   
- 38 Norman Drive 

 
A public hearing will be held by the Board of Zoning Adjustment on  MONDAY, 
November 16, 2015 at 5:00 p.m. in Mountain Brook City Hall, at which time you may 
appear, if you so desire, either in person or by agent or by attorney. 

 
The application and related material are available for inspection during regular 
business hours at City Hall, 56 Church Street or by viewing: 

 
www.mtnbrook.org 
- Government 
- Other Meeting Agendas 
-  Board of Zoning Adjustment  
-  November 16, 2015 (to view survey select link associated with the case number on the agenda) 
 
Sincerely, 

 
Dana O. Hazen, MPA, AICP 
Director of Planning, Building & Sustainability 
(205) 802-3821     
hazend@mtnbrook.org 

http://www.mtnbrook.org/


Zoning Code Existing Proposed 
Requirement Development Development 

Lot Area (sf) 
Lot Width (ft) 75' 60' 60' 

Front Setback (ft) primary 
Front Setback (ft) secondary 
Right Side Setback 
Left Side Setback 
Right Side Setback (ft): 
For non-conforming narrow 

8' 5.7' 5.7' 

lots in Res-B or Res-C: 
Less than 22' high + 
22' high or greater + 
Left Side Setback (ft): 
For non-conforming narrow 
lots in Res-B or Res-C: 
Less than 22' high + 
22' high or greater + 
Rear Setback (ft) 
Lot Coverage (%) 
Building Height (ft) 
Other 
Other 



Mike Baker 

October 23,2015 

Board of Zoning Adjustments 
Mountain Brook City Hall 
56 Church Street 
Mountain Brook, AL 35213 

403 Cherry Street, Birmingham, AL 35213 1 205-873-4019 1 msbakes@gmail.com 

Dear Members of the Board: 

I would like to request a variance for the addition of approximately 90' square feet of living 
space to our house at  403 Cherry Street. 

The house was built in 1947 prior to incorporation of the City of Mountain Brook and the 
establishment of the current city zoning setbacks. We are in Zone R-B and for pre-1950 
houses the right side yard setback is 8'. The back half of our house sits within that setback. 

The proposed addition will align with the face of the existing non-compliant portion of the 
house but not project additionally into the setback. No other setbacks are affected. 

Enclosed please find a Request for Variance application along with a check for the hearing 
fee. Please advise if there is additional information we need to provide. 

Thank you for your attention to this matter. 

Sincerely, 

Mike Baker 

simmonsh
Highlight

simmonsh
Highlight



EU
CL
ID
 AV
E

SPRING
ST

JAC
KSO

N BLV
D

PEACHTREE ST

C

A

R LA

CI
R

MO
NT
EV
AL

LO
RD

M

EA
D
O
W
B
R
O
O
K
LN

CHERRY ST

DE
XT
ER
 A
VE

ELM ST

MAIN ST

503
26

428
21501

426
24

16
19

1727404
22 14

1525 20
413

23 1318409 28
21405

1626
1121401

14

19331 12
17

22
333 10

15

6

402
401

403
3914401 4404

407 39122
409402408

3908411
403

404
415 3906

3904
406405

3909
3902

410
410

3900
3907412407412

3905

3822
409

414

3903
3820

3818
3901

411416

3816 3902

418

3804

3823

3900
3821

3800

420

3817422

3813
38163809

3814

424

3807

3812 3817
3805

38103803 3815428

61

59
57

54

50

44

9

5

3

1

20
335 18

337 13 8
332 16

339 11 6400 14
912

7

413
411

409

400

311

307

504
25

4421
509

500
20

1
2

505
23 3

430

24

417
421

Zoning Legend

Clustered Residential

Community Shopping

Estate Residence District

Local Business District

MXD

Office Park District

Professional District

PUD

Residence A District

Residence B District

Residence C District

Residence D District

Residence E District

Residence F District

Residence G District

Recreation District

RID

Rec-2

A-15-17 (Zoning)



Report to the Board of Zoning Adjustment 

 

A-15-17 
 

Petition Summary 
Request to allow an addition to a single family dwelling to match the existing side 

setback of 5.7 feet from the side property line (southeast) in lieu of the required 9 feet. 

 

Analysis 
The hardship in this case is the narrowness of the lot (60 feet).  The proposal is to match 

the exiting side setback with an addition to the kitchen/dining room.    As may be seen in 

the attached photos, there is a 12-foot high brick wall along the side property line.  Given 

this, it is not anticipated that an approval of this request would affect the flow of light and 

air to the adjoining property. 

 

Impervious Area 
The proposal is in compliance with the allowable impervious surface area.   

 

Subject Property and Surrounding Land Uses 
The property contains a single-family dwelling, and is surrounded by same. 

 

Affected Regulation 
Article IV, Residence B District; Section 129-53, Special Provisions for Nonconforming 

Residence B Lots 

 

Appends 
LOCATION:  403 Cherry Street 

 

ZONING DISTRICT:  Res-B 

 

OWNERS: Mike and Laura Baker 

 

 

 

 

 









CHERRY ST

401

403

407

409402

411

404

406

339

14

A-15-17 (Aerial)



Variance Application 
Part I1 

Required Findings (Sec. 19.26.5 of the Zoning Ordinance) 

To aid staff in determining that the required hardship findings can be made in this particular 
case, please answer the following questions with regard to your request. These findings must 
be made by the Board of Zoning Adjustment in order for a variance to be granted (please 
attach a separate sheet if necessary). 

What special circumstances or conditions, applying to the building or land in question, are 
peculiar to such building or land, and do not apply generally to other buildings or land in the 
vicinity (including size, shape, topography, location or surroundings)? 

Our 60' lot is smaller than the minimum 75' required per our zoning. 

Why is the granting of a variance necessary to preserve property rights on the subject property 
and not be the granting or a special privilege for the applicant's convenience? 

Our house is an existing non-compliant structure. 

Was the condition from which relief is sought a result of action by the applicant? (i.e., self- 
imposed hardship such as: ". . .converted existing garage to living space and am now seeking a 
variance to construct a new garage in a required setback.. .") 

It is not. 

How would the granting of this variance be consistent with the purpose and intent of the Zoning 
Regulations? 



MOUNTAIN BROOK BOARD OF ZONING ADJUSTMENT 
56 CHURCH STREET 

MOUNTAIN BROOK, ALABAMA 
 

NOTICE TO OWNERS OF ADJACENT PROPERTY 
 

 
A request for a variance in the Zoning Ordinance, as applied to the property located at 
403 Cherry Street, has been filed by Mike and Laura Baker. 
 
The requested variance would authorize the construction of an addition to an existing 
single family dwelling as per plot plan on file at Mountain Brook City Hall. 
 
The property is located in the Res-B Zoning District, and requires approval by the Board 
of Zoning Adjustment for the following variance from the terms of the Zoning 
Regulations: 
 

A-15-17:  Mike and Laura Baker, owners, request a variance from the terms of the 
Zoning Regulations to allow an addition to a single family dwelling to match 
the existing side setback of 5.7 feet from the side property line (southeast) in 
lieu of the required 9 feet.  - 403 Cherry Street 

 
A public hearing will be held by the Board of Zoning Adjustment on  MONDAY, 
November 16, 2015 at 5:00 p.m. in Mountain Brook City Hall, at which time you may 
appear, if you so desire, either in person or by agent or by attorney. 

 
The application and related material are available for inspection during regular 
business hours at City Hall, 56 Church Street or by viewing: 

 
www.mtnbrook.org 
- Government 
- Other Meeting Agendas 
-  Board of Zoning Adjustment  
-  November 16, 2015 (to view survey select link associated with the case number on the agenda) 
 
Sincerely, 

 
Dana O. Hazen, MPA, AICP 
Director of Planning, Building & Sustainability 
(205) 802-3821     
hazend@mtnbrook.org 

http://www.mtnbrook.org/


Variance Application - Part I 

Project Data 

Address of Subject Property 30 Dexter Avenue, 352 13 

Zoning Classification VST District 

Name of Property Owner(s) & 
Phone Number 368-2249 (John Bryant) Email c/o Len Shannon Is@,shanwalt.com 

Name of Surveyor Laurence D. Weyand 

Name of Architect (if applicable) Scott P. Phillips, Boomhover Phillips Architecture 

Phone Number 205-335-8 1 87 Email sphillips@boomphillips.com 

[X) Property owner or representative agent must be present at hearing 

Please fi l l  in only applicable project information (relating directly to the variance request(s): 

Lot Area (sf) 
Lot Width (ft) 

Front Setback (ft) secondary 
Right Side Setback 
Left Side Setback 
Right Side Setback (ft): 
For non-conforming narrow 
lots in Res-B or Res-C: 
Less than 22' high + 
22' high or greater + 
Left Side Setback (ft): 
For non-conforming narrow 
lots in Res-B or Res-C: 
Less than 22' high + 
22' high or greater + 
Rear Setback (ft) 
Lot Coverage (%) 
Building Height (ft) 
Other 
Qther 

Zoning Code 
Requirement 

Existing 
Development 

Proposed 
Development 



MOUNTAIN BROOK BOARD OF ZONING ADJUSTMENT 
56 CHURCH STREET 

MOUNTAIN BROOK, ALABAMA 
 

NOTICE TO OWNERS OF ADJACENT PROPERTY 
 

 
A request for an appeal from the decision of the zoning officer as to the uses permitted in 
the Vine Street Transitional District, has been filed by Crestline Commercial Partners, 
LLC.  In the decision being appealed, the zoning officer found that a proposed urgent 
care medical care facility did not constitute a “professional office” use under the City’s 
zoning ordinance and was therefore not permitted in the Vine Street Transitional District.   
 
The appeal requests a finding by the Board of Zoning Adjustment that an urgent care 
medical facility is, by definition, a “professional office,” and that, therefore, the 
establishment of an urgent care medical facility is permitted as a matter of right on any 
property zoned Vine Street Transitional District, subject to the development regulations 
set forth in Section XXXII of the Municipal Code of Mountain Brook.  At the meeting 
the following appeal will thus be heard: 
 

A-15-18:  Crestline Commercial Partners, LLC, requests an appeal from the decision of 
the zoning officer as to the permitted uses in the Vine Street Transitional 
District with respect to urgent care and professional office uses. 
- 30 Dexter Avenue 

 
The public hearing with respect to case A-15-18 will be held by the Board of Zoning 
Adjustment on  MONDAY, November 16, 2015 at 5:00 p.m. in Mountain Brook City 
Hall, at which time you may appear and be heard, if you so desire, either in person or by 
agent or by attorney. 

 
The application and related material are available for inspection during regular 
business hours at City Hall, 56 Church Street or by viewing: 

 
www.mtnbrook.org 
- Government 
- Other Meeting Agendas 
-  Board of Zoning Adjustment  
-  November 16, 2015 (to view survey select link associated with the case number on the agenda) 
 
Sincerely, 

 
Dana O. Hazen, MPA, AICP 
Director of Planning, Building & Sustainability 
(205) 802-3821     
hazend@mtnbrook.org 

http://www.mtnbrook.org/


ELM
ST

CHURCH
ST

EU
CL
ID
 A
VE

OA
K 
ST

VINE ST

CLUB VILLAGE DR

DE
XT
ER
 A
VE

70

68
50

60

63 52

59
61

121

57
55

115

112

145

204141

200139

133

130

120

104

131

126129

124

120119
123

100

117

107

119

117

30

101

115

26 111
2

5577

23

17

80

1511

58

71
4874

203
138 201

53
49

45

75
73

69
67
65

102
103

106

107

64
66

72

125

127

129

133

103

105

9

110
112

114

100
102

104

106
108

Zoning Legend

Clustered Residential

Community Shopping

Estate Residence District

Local Business District

MXD

Office Park District

Professional District

PUD

Residence A District

Residence B District

Residence C District

Residence D District

Residence E District

Residence F District

Residence G District

Recreation District

RID

Rec-2

A-15-18 (Zoning)



I 

nAn ar AUBAMA 
J-- \ 
1. ~ a u t r n e e  0. Weymend nglnbbr- Land 
I*. ..I.%, ...., -1% ......,..... J!,d.14~* ................................... .... 
h. .... 1%. ..........., in +he &a 04 th. M@ of ?b.* .... J & ~ ~ s . ~ o ~ . . .  COV*, Alabama: +hol 1h.n an M ~htr.0 ' .  
w e .  wWi8ftk br /dnt d r i v r w ~  m e  ~ ' m  Wld ldnd vhw om tk w d ~  beopt w hn: hat there am no d . ~ e  et hlaphecl. 
rlW8 (d"dtq wk& whkh wr** ~ W I I M M ~ )  6rc)Ne)wM W WpW. I)c.id% hdudt- b a n d  grty *. on - 
pernha l ab&un: the1 I hove cdllblhd fie Prdrmf I lctcrmm Addnh)+eHen m%td 

. prepre H fib( M 6 d  h "a rpaelat llwe I IMmtd err&. !her W t w  o n  no w m t h 4 r n  on . .... arc ~d M rhsc;sn above and M h e d h n  ............................ 
wdw n my a w y  sc: ....IT?. x.* ...3 .!..t.l.$!. 

Suwy InveAd If rCLY) Wed ;d in. 
. - 

, . .... ...... . .- 1700 So. 2% Cbu* Suik 120 Binninghom, A1  35209 
I 





 

Dana O. Hazen, AICP 
Director of Planning, Building 
& Sustainability 

56 Church St  
Mountain Brook, Alabama 35213-0009 
Telephone:  205/802-3805 
hazend@mtnbrook.org 

October 12, 2015 

 

Andrew Campbell 

Campbell, Guin, Williams, Guy & Gidiere LLC 

505 20th St N, Suite 1600 

Birmingham, AL 35203 

 

RE: 30 Dexter Avenue 

 

Dear Mr. Campbell, 

 

Thank you for your letter of September 30, 2015 requesting a formal interpretation of whether or not a walk-in 

medical clinic is a permissible use under the zoning regulations for the Vine Street Transitional District.  As you 

know, the Vine Street Transitional District includes as a permissible use “Professional Office.”   

 

Your client is an entity that owns and operates walk-in medical clinics and the representative for that entity, at 

least for purposes of the present request, is Dr. Lee England, a local resident.  Dr. England has described the 

nature of the proposed business in detail.  The proposal is to establish a walk-in urgent care medical clinic at the 

proposed site.  Although Dr. England is a physician, the clinic is not proposed to be his office or a permanent 

office for any particular physician.  It will instead be staffed by independent contractors (or employees) who may 

or may not be regularly assigned there and it is not any particular “doctor’s office.”  The walk in clinic is 

proposed to be open to the general public seven days per week with extended hours from 8:00 a.m. to 8:00 p.m.  

For the business model to work, the necessary minimum patient load per day was described to be at least 30-50 

patients per day.  Volume was explained to be a major driver of profitability.  Service will be provided on a “first 

come-first served” basis without appointments.  The clinic will provide emergency care in addition to general 

medical practice.  Unlike a traditional medical practice where “customers” are limited by appointment and 

physician availability, in this context, the limitations are instead based on available space to provide service or to 

queue customers, parking and demand.  While the zoning of the subject property allows “Professional Office” as 

a use, it is my interpretation that the proposed walk-in clinic does not constitute a “Professional Office” use as it 

is contemplated in this district, given the nature of the use described above. 

 

The Vine Street Transitional District is one that was created by the City, in cooperation with the property owners 

of the single family dwellings in the immediate vicinity of the subject property, to allow "soft" uses that would 

serve as a transition from the Local Business District of Crestline Village to the single family district on the 

northeast side of Vine Street.  Professional or business offices anticipated for this zoning district were those that 

provide employment and space for the administrative affairs of business, but that would not generally involve 

frequent or intensive interactions by clients or general consumers on a daily basis.   Uses with high patronage 

(such as restaurants, banks, and salons) were purposely and mindfully excluded from this district so as to protect 

the residential character of the neighborhood on the northeast side of Vine Street. 

 

 It is my conclusion that the proposed use, due to the operational characteristics described to me by Dr. England, 

may not be considered a professional office.  It is a contemporary variation of a traditional physician's office 

(which has historically been a 9:00-5:00 Monday-Friday type of use) and is not a use currently anticipated or 

allowed by the City of Mountain Brook's code in any district.  It is a use that may warrant further study by the 

city for inclusion in the list of permitted uses in the Local Business District, but certainly was not anticipated by 

the City Council, Planning Commission or neighborhood representatives who contrived the Vine Street 

Transitional District as one that would permit soft uses that would provide a good "buffer" for the protection of 

the single family neighborhood along Vine Street. 

 

Sincerely, 

 
Dana O. Hazen 

 

    



 

 

1941 

 

 

Petition Summary 
Request to rezone property at 30 Dexter Avenue from Residence-D District to Vine 

Street Transitional (VST) District. 

 

Background 
The VST District ordinance was adopted by the City Council in November 2013 as a 

potential zoning district choice for eligible properties along the west side of Vine Street.  

It is intended to provide the opportunity for compact, appropriate-scaled buildings 

consisting of either detached or attached (townhouse) single family dwellings, 

professional and business offices, or mix of commercial and residential uses, with offices 

on the ground level and residential above.   

 

The district is intended to establish an effective transition from the Local Business 

District in Crestline Village to the residential neighborhoods on the perimeter of the 

Village.  It is also intended to provide an opportunity for eligible properties to be 

developed with a building form and façade design that is transitionally compatible with 

the neighboring commercial and residential zoning districts. 

 

On December 1, 2014, the Planning Commission voted to recommend approval of this 

rezoning request. 

 

Analysis 
The proposed use is office, with a one or two suite option.  The plans are in substantial 

conformance with the VST District development regulations, and the building scale and 

materials have been developed with “transitional” characteristics.  Proposed setbacks are 

still under staff review and may undergo some revision.  New on-street parking and 

sidewalks along Vine Street and Dexter Avenue are proposed in conjunction with this 

development.  Seventeen parking spaces are proposed on the street (and will be credited 

to this project’s minimum 21 space parking requirement) and four spaces will be 

provided on-site, taking access from the alley. 

 

VDR 
The applicant has initiated the Village Design Review process and as received initial 

feedback from the VDR, all of which was positive.  Final review and approval by VDR is 

anticipated subsequent to zoning approval.   

 

Binding Effect 
The VST ordinance (similar to a PUD) requires that the master plan submitted for zoning 

approval shall be an integral and essential element of any zoning approval and shall be 

binding on the property and any subsequent development thereof.  Therefore, the 

submitted plan will become part of any rezoning approval. 

hazend
Typewritten Text
Report to City Council for Rezoning Case 1941



Subject Property and Surrounding Land Uses 
The subject property contains a single family dwelling, with the same across Vine Street 

(zoned Res-C) and Dexter Avenue (zoned Res-D), and commercial uses to the west and 

north (zoned LB). 

 

Affected Regulation 
Article XXXI, Village Overlay Standards; Sections 129-554 through 129-557 

 

Appends 
LOCATION:  30 Dexter Avenue 

 

EXISTING ZONING DISTRICT:  Res-D 

 

PROPOSED ZONING DISTRICT: Vine Street Transitional (VST) 

 

OWNER:  Crestline Commercial Partners, LLC 

 
 

  

 

 

 



August 28,2015 

Dr. R. Lee England, IV 
Phone: 1205) 249-5593 

Re: Zoning & Permitted Use for the Vine Street Transitional District 
Proposed Village Urgent Care Center 
30 Dexter Avenue, Mountain Brook, AL 352 1 3  
BPA Project #I5022 

Dr. England, 

As you have requested, I have again researched the City of Mountain Brook Zoning Code with 
regards to the above listed property, and my opinion remains that the existing regulations, as  
written and approved for the Vine Street Transitional (VST) District, allow Professional and 
Business Offices specifically, and this project should be classified as such. 

I do not see anything in the Zoning Code for the VST District that would indicate otherwise or 
restrict Professional Medical Office use. This exact parcel was specifically approved for use as 
"Office" in Zoning Ordinance #1931, adopted February 23,2015 (recommended for approval 
by the Planning Commission on December 1,2014). 

However, as you know, City Planner Dana Hazen has indicated she would reject the project 
outright, and considers your project something other than Professional Office use. This 
appears to be in conflict with the ordinance and to her email to  Len Shannon (of Shannon 
Waltchack] on July 9,2015 verifying that a professional medical office use is allowed. On 
August 3'd, George Elliott (Shannon Waltchack) also emailed Dana Hazen to  confirm the use, 
and a t  this point mentioned that the type of medical office would be urgent care. Dana Hazen 
did not respond to George's email. In my telephone conversation with Dana Hazen on August 
19th, she stated that she had not replied to George because she was concerned about a "mini- 
hospital" and wanted to consult with the City Attorney regarding how she could deny this use. 
Also as you know, in our meeting with Dana Hazen on August 20,2015, she confirmed that the 
Zoning Code does allow Medical Office use, but stated "this is not what we had in mind for this 
property", and again referred to the project as a "mini-hospital". She also indicated she will 
likely press for a revision to the VST District Ordinance to block such a use. 

Dana Hazen's references to  the project as  a "mini-hospital" is not accurate based on the 
Building Code's definitions of a Hospital vs. Business. The City of Mountain Brook has adopted 
and is regulated by the International Building Code (IBC). Your proposed project is 
specifically classified under IBC Section 304.1 as Business Occu~ancy, which lists: 
"Professional services (architect, attorneys, dentists, physicians, engineers, etc.)" for this 
classification, including outpatient clinics. A HospitaI is defined by the International Building 
Code Section 308.4 as Institutional Occu~ancy which specifically states is a facility "used for 

200 28Ih Street South I Birmingham, Alabama 35233 1 T. 205.683.4801 1 F. 866.931.8780 1 info@boomphillips.com 



medical care on a 24-hour basisfor more than five persons who are incapable of self 
preservation". Urgent Care is a Doctor's Professional Office, and not a mini-hospital in any 
regards. You also clarified that Urgent Care is confirmed as a Physician's Professional Office 
under Federal guidelines, but this was disregarded as her response was to encourage us to 
seek direct approval from the Planning Commission as she intended to reject the project 
outright, stating that she had never anticipated this type of project for this site. 

Your project meets the stated intent of the VST (emphasis added): 

Sec. 129-571. - lntent and purpose. 
The Vine Street Transitional (VST) District is intended to provide compact, 
appropriate-scaled buildings along the west side of Vine Street in Crestline Village 
for detached single-family, attached single-family (townhouse dwelling), professional 
and business offices and mixed use (residential above office). The district may be 
applied to sites which can establish an effective transition from the Local Business 
District in Crestline Village to adjacent residential neighborhoods and the Crestline 
Elementary School site. The district is intended to provide a high degree of pedestrian 
connectivity within Crestline Village to increase accessibility and patronage of 
businesses, and to enhance the pedestrian character of Crestline Village. 

Regarding the building design, Dana Hazen indicated that any slight variation from the 
Conceptual Design package (the Master Development Plan) would force us to return before 
the Planning Commission as if i t  were a brand-new application and would be an opportunity 
to deny this project. The written text of the VST District Ordinance does not support this as 
the intent. While the Master Development Plan is binding, there is an allowance for minor 
modifications needed that are likely to occur as a project moves from the Conceptual state to 
Final implementation (emphasis added): 

Sec. 129-577. - lntent and purpose. 
(d) Binding effect of approved master development plan. The master development plan 
that is required to be submitted with an application for zoning or rezoning shall be 
deemed an integral and essential element of any zoning or rezoning approved 
hereunder; and the plan, if and as modified and approved by the city council, shall be 
binding on the property and any subsequent development thereof unless and until the 
property is subsequently rezoned or modified in the manner prescribed by law; 
provided, however, that in order to accommodate such minor adjustments to the 
approved master development plan as may be required by engineering or other 
cfrcunistances unforeseen a t  the time of its approval by the city council, the city's 
zoning officer is authorized to approve alterations to the master development plan 
which, in his [her] opinion, arc incidental 01- n i i~lor  in scope, and which nl;~intain 
the intent and character of the approved master development plan. 

200 2 ~ ' ~  Street South 1 Birmingham, Alabama 35233 1 T. 205.683.4801 1 F. 866.931.8780 1 info@boomphillips.com 

Page 213 



While the approval of any modification rests with the zoning officer, the written text does not 
indicate that the purpose is to block a project for minor changes. If Dana Hazen's opinion of 
the project's classification can be addressed, minor changes to the design should be allowed as 
long as the intent and character of the approved Master Development Plan is maintained. 

Please feel free to contact me with questions or with anything I can do to assist in trying to 
move the project forward. You have my direct number at 205-335-8187 or by email a t  
sphillips@boomphillips.com. 

Respectfully, 

Scott P. Phillips, Architect 
Boomhover Phillips Architecture, LLC 

cc: George Elliott, Shannon Waltchack 

* .-+- & ,%.- - * a ~ - ~ - ~ i l i l > i l . i l % "  . .C* . , A ,_.*,_,/. ,n, u. i-r-.-a.-.U <. >..Waui* 

200 28Ih Street South 1 B~rmlngham, Alabama 35233 1 T 205 683.4801 1 F .  866 931.8780 ( ~nfo@boomph~ll~ps.com 

Page 313 



Rezoning Application 

Sec. 129-433. - Basic requirements for application for rezoning. 

An application for any change in the zoning classification of a parcel must include 
the following items and information: 

(1) Present zoning classification of the parcel; R-D 

(2) Zoning classification to which the applicant wishes to  have the property 
changed; VST Dlrtrkt 

(3) The address, real estate tax parcel identification number and legal description of 
the parcel, and the size of the parcel in square feet and acreage; 
30 Dexter Avenue, 35213 

Parcel ID: 26-04-2-012-007 
Legal Lot 12, Blk 12 Cmstllne Helghts 
Slm. 8,625 SF 

(4) Name and address of the owner of the parcel; 
Crestllne Commercial Partners, LLC 
Attn: John Bryant 
120 18th Street South, Sulte 101 
Birmingham, AL 35233 

(5) Name and address of the applicant, if he is someone other than the owner. 
Crestline Commerclsi Partners, LLC 
Attn: John Bryant 
120 18th Street South, Suite 101 
Birmingham, AL 35233 

(6) If the application is made by anyone other than all of the owners of the parcel, 
written authorization from the other owners with respect to the filing of the 
application; 
Crestllne Commerricrl Partners, LLC 
Attn: John Bryant 
120 18th Street South, Sulte 101 
Birmingham, AL 35233 

(7) Name and address of any party who holds a mortgage on the parcel, or any part 
thereof; 
Sends First Bank 
850 Shades Cmek Parkway, Sulte 200 
Birmingham, Alabama 35209 

(8) Statement of how the parcel is to be used if the rezoning application is granted; 
Parcel will be used to construct an office buildlng for commercial use I 



( ' r i t t e n  documentation, including: 

(a) A legal description and conhat ion of current zoning of the 
subject property. 

Legal Description: Lot 12, Blk 12, Crestline Heights as recorded in MV 7, page 16, as 
recorded in the office of the probate judge, Jefferson County; current zoning is 
Residence-D. 

(b) The names and addresses of the applicant and owner of the 
property* 

i. Owner of Subject Property: 
Crestline Commercial Partners, LLC 
120 18tb Street South, suite 101 
Birmlngham, A1 35233 

ij. Members: John Bryant, Kevin Gann, Seed Corn, LLC 
Managing Member: Len Shannon 

(a) A statement of development objectives to be achieved through the 
particular approach proposed by the applicant, including a detailed 
description of the character of the proposed development and its 
relationship to surrounding areas. 

Applicant intends to build an office building (option for one-two suites). The 
exterior design of which is to be compatible and harmonious with the adjoining 
residential neighborhood. Roof lines are residential in nature and building materials 
are the same as used In neighboring houses. The height, scale and masslng of the 
proposed building will be compatible with the adjoining residential neighborhood, 
and will serve as a transition of building form between that of the heavy commercial 
to the west and single family neighborhood to the east 







hazend
Typewritten Text

hazend
Typewritten Text



CHURCH ST

EU
CL
ID
 A
VE

CLUB VILLAGE DR

DE
XT
ER
 A
VE

VINE ST

139

133

131

126129

124

120
119

100

117

107

30 115

26 111

2

77

23

17

15
11

58

75

105

9

100

102

A-15-18 (Aerial)


	Cover Memo
	Agenda
	Minutes: October 19, 2015
	Case A-15-13.pdf
	A-15-13 application
	A-15-13 legal Norman
	A-15-13 survey
	A-15-13 statement
	A-15-13 (Aerial)
	A-15-13 (Zoning)

	Case A-15-14 .pdf
	A-15-14 application
	A-15-14 survey
	A-15-14 legal Thompson
	A-15-14 statement
	A-15-14 (Aerial2)
	A-15-14 (Zoning)
	A-15-14 siteplan, plans, elevations

	Case A-15-15.pdf
	A-15-15 application
	A-15-15 application
	A-15-15 (Aerial)
	A-15-15 (Zoning)
	A-15-15 plans and elevation
	Plan_20151104_0001
	Plan_20151104_0002

	A-15-15 legal Stewart
	A-15-15 statement
	A-15-15 survey.pdf
	Grade As Built Update 24x36
	Model



	Case A-15-16.pdf
	A-15-16 (Aerial)
	A-15-16 (Zoning)
	A-15-16 application
	A-15-16 survey
	A-15-16 statement
	A-15-16 legal Grubbs

	Case A-15-17.pdf
	A-15-17 application
	A-15-17 survey
	A-15-17 (Aerial)
	A-15-17 (Zoning)
	A-15-17 legal Baker
	A-15-17 statement
	A-15-17 photos
	DOC014
	DOC015


	Case A-15-18.pdf
	A-15-18 application
	A-15-18 legal Crestline Comm Partners
	A-15-18 (Zoning)
	A-15-18 (Aerial)
	A-15-18 survey 1988
	A-15-18 info letter
	A-15-18 rezoning app #1941
	A-15-18 drawing
	A-15-18 site plan

	Untitled



